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Pioneers in Leather Goods
by CHRISTINE FUREDY
THE bootmaking and saddlery business of Morrison and Cottle was an example of how skilful and enterprising men could make a name for themselves in the intensely com​petitive retail sector of Calcutta. The two men bought out a bankrupt bootmaking business and went into partnership in 1894.
Edward James Morrison (boot​maker) and John Cottle (saddler) had met while apprentices in a boot-making firm in Northampton and worked together in a Calcutta firm (probably Cuthbertson and Harper's) for a few years before setting up busi​ness together.
They were both skilled craftsmen and careful businessmen but they must have had more than this; they must have possessed a keen entrepreneurial drive to succeed as they did in such a short time. John Cottle was the 'brains' of the business and subsequently rose to a high posi​tion in the retail community, becom​ing master of the Calcutta Trades Association in 1923.
The history of the firm's rise illus​trates some common features of the British shops of Calcutta. Morrison & Cottle built their reputation upon a luxury import trade in footwear (be- coming the sole agents in India for Mansfield shoes) and the high quality of their bespoke saddle and harness making.    They soon began to secure the mainstay of the elite shops: orders from the government, the plantations and the princely courts. Important royal orders are cherished memories in the firm.

For instance, the King of Nepal had his saddles and harnesses made there. All the fittings were made of pure gold or silver rather than the usual nickel and brass. Bags of gold and silver coins were delivered to the shop under guard to be melted down and shaped into fittings by a subcontracting silversmith in Bhowanipur. All the leading princes of the subcontinent had footlasts made of brass stored in the workshop so that their footwear could be made without a personal visit to Calcutta.

Initially the firm imported almost all the materials required from abroad: cow hides from Britain, ox leather from Holland, fine suede from France and Germany, saddle leather from Australia, and thread and nails from England.
As the process of leather tanning improved in India the firm began to get some supplies from the North West Tannery in Kanpur and from smaller Muslim firms in that city. On the whole, however, it was expec​ted that high quality goods would be made of imported materials and the artisan-retailers remained dependent upon imports.
The first premises of the firm was a small shop and workshop on Esplanade East; later they moved to larger rooms on Esplanade Row. The move to Chowringhee where it still persists was made only in 1937. Whatever the site, the shop consisted of the retail section where customers were received, the ship​ping department from which the numerous mail orders were despat​ched, and the workshops occupying two or three times the space of the other rooms.
Here upwards of 100 cobblers sat cross-legged over their lasts, often with their sons at their sides to learn the trade. Forty or more saddle and harness makers worked at benches in the saddlery department. Most of these were Behari Chamars from a few subcastes renowned for their skilled work; others were Muslims from the United Provinces. In the early days the workers often slept on the premises but later the firm pro​vided dormitories some distance off. It is said that the firm's mistries were very loyal. So highly desired was a place in the workshops that Morrison and Cottle never had to recruit labour: any vacant place was immediately filled by the sons or relatives of wor​kers.    Close supervision and insistence on high quality workmanship helped the firm sustain its reputation.
The tradition of good labour rela​tions is seen in the later history of the firm. The present proprietor's father, R. N. Dutt, joined the shop as a cashier in 1930. He was permit​ted to bring his son to work and in 1947 Samar Dutt was sent to the Bengal Tanning Institute for training in the trade. His father became an administrative officer and later a director of the firm, eventually buying out the retiring partners.
Like other artisan-retailer firms, Morrison and Cottle provided high quality goods to the wealthy in India. Their reputations rested on their bespoke trade. They prided them​selves that they knew their patrons' needs and could supply any of their wants. But their continued depen​dence upon imported materials was to be the Achilles' heel of many firms when India began to develop its own industries through protection, especi​ally after independence, and the advent of considerable import res​trictions. The distinction between the quality of the elite shops and that of the skilled bazaar artisans was no longer so clear while synthetic and mass-produced goods increasingly displaced consumer items made by hand from natural materials. And besides, with independence the fore​ign elite who had patronized the shops left the country; later the princes were to find that their reduced purses greatly restricted their buying power. Nevertheless, it is true to say that the skills upon which the European tradesmen built their business— Indian handcrafting skills applied to European concepts—are still an im​portant factor in Calcutta's retail trade today.

A famous shop which made to order and also imported quality leather goods for a steady clientele that no longer exists is transformed to the status of an exporter. M &C was most successful example of the marketing combination of European techniques and materials with Indian handcrafting skills and labour.
The firm still continues that tradi​tion under today's changed circum​stances, exporting leather bags, saddlery and harness to Australia, France, West Germany, Netherlands and the United Kingdom. It also supplies saddlery and harness to such organizational buyers as Calcutta Police and stud 

farms.

